ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 12, 2005
3:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 231
"An Act relating to the definition of 'nmunicipality' for
pur poses of human services conmmunity matching grants.”

- MOVED CSHB 231(CRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 161

"An Act relating to reenploynent of and benefits for retired
teachers and public enployees and to teachers or enployees who
partici pated in retirement i ncentive pr ogr ans and are
subsequently reenployed as a comm ssioner; repealing secs. 5, 7,
and 9, ch. 58, SLA 2001; providing for an effective date by
anendi ng the del ayed effective date for secs. 3, 5 9, and 12,
ch. 57, SLA 2001, and repealing sec. 13, ch. 58, SLA 2001, which
is the delayed effective date for secs. 5, 7, and 9, ch. 58, SLA
2001; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 204
"An Act relating to the prescription and use of pharmaceutica
agents, including controlled substances, by optonetrists."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 29

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 12, 2005



“"An Act relating to health care insurance and to the
Conpr ehensi ve Health | nsurance Association; and providing for an
effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 112

"An Act relating to <child protection, including forensic
interviews and transportation of children; and providing for an
effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 231

SHORT TI TLE: HUMAN SERVI CES GRANT ELI G BILITY
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) W LSON

03/ 23/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 23/ 05 (H) CRA, HES, FIN

04/ 07/ 05 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 07/ 05 (H) Moved CSHB 231(CRA) Qut of Committee
04/ 07/ 05 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 08/ 05 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 3DP 2NR

04/ 08/ 05 (H) DP: Cl SSNA, KOTT, LEDOUX;

04/ 08/ 05 (H) NR. SALMON, OLSON

04/ 12/ 05 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPlI TOL 106

BILL: HB 161
SHORT TI TLE: REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI REES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) ELKI NS

02/ 18/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 18/ 05 (H EDU, HES, STA

04/ 05/ 05 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 05/ 05 (H Moved CSHB 161(EDU) Qut of Committee
04/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( EDU)

04/ 06/ 05 (H EDU RPT CS(EDU) 1DP 5NR 1AM

04/ 06/ 05 (H DP: THOMAS;

04/ 06/ 05 (H NR GARA, SALMON, GATTO, LYNN, NEUMAN,
04/ 06/ 05 (H AM W LSON

04/ 07/ 05 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 07/ 05 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

04/ 12/ 05 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 204

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 12, 2005



SHORT TI TLE: OPTOMETRI STS USE OF PHARMACEUTI CALS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) THOVAS

03/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (H HES, L&C
04/ 12/ 05 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ROSEMARY HAGEVI G Menber

Board of Directors

Sout heast Conference

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 231.

JANET CLARKE, Assistant Comm ssioner

Central Ofice

Fi nance and Managenent Services

Department of Health & Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 231, explained the
fiscal note prepared by the departnent.

HEATHER WHEELER, Deputy Director

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Depart nent of Health and Human Servi ces (DHHS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Her testinony regarding HB 231 was read by
Mol Iy Cull om

JI' M VANHORN, St af f

to Representative JimElkins

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced new information relevant to HB
161 on behal f of Representative Elkins, sponsor.

M KE TI BBLES, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent
during the hearing on HB 161

LEO JOHN KERI N

Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 161

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 12, 2005



ROBERT McHATTI E
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 161.

LARRY W GET, Director

Government Rel ati ons

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 161.

BRUCE JOHNSON

Al aska Associ ation of School Boards (AASB)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the association is in
support of the rehire provision of HB 161.

CHRIS S. CHRI STENSEN, Deputy Adm nistrative Director

Adm ni strative Staff

Ofice of the Adm nistrative Director

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified to express his appreciation of HB
161.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL THOVAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 204, as sponsor.

CARL ROSEN, M D., President

Al aska Eye Physicians and Surgeons

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 204.

DONALD J. CINOTTI, M D.
Jersey City, New Jersey
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 204.

BOYD WALKER, O. D.

Hormer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 204.
GRI FF STEI NER, M D.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 204.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2005



CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:10:54 PM
Representati ves Seaton, Gardner, Ci ssna, and WIson were present
at the call to order. Representatives Kohring, MGQire and
Anderson arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 231- HUVAN SERVI CES GRANT ELIG BILITY

CHAIR WLSON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 231, "An Act relating to the definition of
"muni ci pality' for purposes of human services comrmunity natching
grants.” [Before the conmttee was the conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 231(CRA), Version 24-LS0791\G ]

CHAIR WLSON turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Seaton.
3:12:45 PM

CHAIR WLSON introduced HB 231, as sponsor. She descri bed the
proposed legislation as "a human services matching grant
program" Currently, the only comunities that receive
[ matching grants] are Anchorage, Fairbanks, and - nost recently
- the Matanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) Valley. Those communities
qualify because they neet a population requirenent. The
original bill version would expand the definition of a qualified
muni ci pality to include a consortium of municipalities |ocated
in the sane geographic area, wth a population that exceeds
50, 000; however, an anmendnent was adopted in the |last conmttee
of referral to change that nunber to 35, 000.

CHAIR WLSON said in order to qualify for the grants, a
muni ci pal ity nust: provide 30 percent of the funding, conply
with the grant application process, and establish a citizens'
advi sory group to help establish the priorities in the area "and
to see who gets the grants.” The proposed |egislation would
al l ow Sout heast Alaska to qualify for the grants "if they were
under the unbrella of soneone else.” She added, "W're |ooking
at Sout heast Conference to be our wunbrella.” She said that
organi zation presently works closely with the communities of
Sout heast Al aska. She |isted [organizations that are currently
provi ding services in Southeast Al aska]: Center for Comunity,
United Way, Alaska Health Fair, 1Inc., Southeast Al aska Food
Bank, Catholic Community Services, [Aiding Wnen in Abuse and
Rape Energencies (AWARE Inc.)], Alaska Legal Services, and
Sout heast Seni or Servi ces.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2005



CHAIR WLSON stated, "I really think this is a fairness issue."
She noted that there was a shift in the legislature this year
when it set a precedent by opening up the availability of grants
for utilities that were private and previously could not get
grants.

3:16: 50 PM

CHAIR WLSON, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, said she is not aware of anyone who is opposed to the
bill.

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked Chair WIlson if her intention was to
have the latest bill version adopted by the commttee.

3:17: 47 PM

CHAIR WLSON said she would rather work with the original bil
than with the commttee substitute [currently before the
commttee, produced by the House Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Committee]. She expressed that there may be sone
reluctance by the communities already receiving the grants to
allow other conmunities to participate at a |lower mninmm
requi renent; they would rather see comunities pull together in
order to "get nore bang for the buck."” She said she would | eave
it up to the committee to decide; however, she predicted the
chances of the bill succeeding would be better if it were inits
original form In response to a question from Chair Seaton, she
confirmed that the only difference between the original bill and
the version from the House Comunity and Regional Affairs
Standing Commttee is the popul ation requirenent.

3:19: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA revealed that, as a nenber of the House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee, she had
participated in the discussion regarding the population
requi renent of HB 231. She said a committee nenber from the
northern part of Alaska had stated concern that it would be
difficult enough for conmunities in that region to band together
to nmeet the requirenent of 35,000, |et al one 50, 000.

CHAI R WLSON responded, "That's left up in the air in the bill

so that if communities want to pull together to do this, they
can." She said geographic area is not defined in the bill. She
indicated that the intent of the bill is to provide the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2005



opportunity for comrunities to succeed in getting grants if they
choose to do so.

CHAI R W LSON [i ndi sc. ]

VICE CHAIR SEATQON, in response to Chair WIson, suggested that
the intent of the commttee now was [to continue to use the
House Conmmunity and Regional Affairs Standing Conmittee's bill
version already before the commttee].

3:22: 06 PM

ROSEMARY  HAGEVI G, Menber , Board  of Directors, Sout heast
Conference, testified on behalf of Southeast Conference. She
told the conmmittee that she is also the executive director of a
regional social services organization that could potentially
benefit from the bill. She stated that nmany regional social
services providers in Southeast Al aska support HB 231. She
reported that the last U 'S. Census data shows that the total
popul ation in Southeast Alaska is just over 70,000; therefore

the region would qualify. She said the social services
infrastructure in the region is having an increasingly difficult
time coming up wth specific grant anobunts in the various
budget s. The proposed |egislation would provide an opportunity
to infuse an additional |evel of resources into the conmunity.
She stated, "Certainly, from ny own personal experience and what
| know to be in place already, we nore than would be able to
meet the required 30 percent match.”

M5. HAGEVI G said there was sone discussion in the last conmttee
of referral regarding the fiscal note. She said, "In our
conversations with the departnent, they shed sone |ight on why
that truly would be a zero fiscal note, even thought they did
provide sone scenarios about eventual costs.” She offered
further details. She stated, "The other thing that we would
like to make very clear is that we are not interested in seeing
anyt hi ng happen that would not hold harnl ess our neighbors to
t he north. Certainly what is going on in Anchorage, Fairbanks,
and now in MatSu is of critical inportance; we just would |ike
to share in the opportunity to be able to participate in the
sanme kind of a program”

M5. HAGEVIG concluded by noting that there are a nunber of
organi zati ons under the United Way unbrella in Southeast Al aska
that provide region-wi de services, and between the Southeast
Conference Board and the United Way Board, there would have no

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2005



difficulty at all in putting together the required kind of
fiscal oversight that woul d be necessary.

3:25:54 PM

JANET CLARKE, Assistant Conmm ssioner, Central Ofice, Finance
and Managenent Services, Departnent of Health & Social Services,
expl ained the fiscal note prepared by the departnent. She said
the zero fiscal was prepared for Version G She stat ed,
"Because the program is based on prorata proportion of
popul ation, it does not in and of itself require an increase of

appropriations.” For exanple, she illustrated that if the
appropriation is $1 mllion, no matter what nunber of grantees
or municipalities qualify, the anmunt would be prorated.
Second, Ms. Clarke noted that if the bill were to pass, it would

not affect the nunicipalities who have already applied for the
program by OCctober 1, 2004 and would have profound inpact on
fiscal year (FY) O07. She explained, "The legislation requires
that municipalities apply before October 1 of the preceding
fiscal year, so for FY 06, the grantees who would qualify would
be Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Mat Su."

VB. CLARKE reviewed the two scenarios provided by the
departnment, which are both based upon "the change to 35, 000."
The first scenario assunes that regional consortiums would form

for all regions of the state and that there would be no
addi ti onal noney  for the program appropriated by the
| egi sl ature. She added, "If that were to occur, then Anchorage,

Mat Su, and Fairbanks would see significant reductions in their
shares of the appropriated funds, and other communities would
see a corresponding increase."” The second scenario, which is
illustrated on page 4 of the fiscal note, wuses the sane
assunptions in the first scenario, but there would also be an
assunption that the legislature would appropriate additional
funds to hold all comunities harmless and still provide grants
"for all the other comunities.” The hol d-harm ess portion of
t he second scenario would cost an additional $613, 483.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked, "Wy is it that only these certain-size
popul ation areas are given those grants and they are not
extended to other areas that nmay have the sane kind of prograns
and be able to cone up with a |local match?"

3:29:46 PM

M5. CLARKE responded by offering a synopsis of the history of
the program She said the programwas put into statute in 1992.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2005



Prior to that, there were block grants provided to Anchorage and
Fai r banks, which began in the early 80s when noney was abundant.
She said, "The idea at the tinme was that Fairbanks and Anchorage
were disproportionately affected by social services prograns,
because they were such large hub communities; people canme to
those communities for services, and the view was that the state
ought to offset sone of those costs that the local conmunities

were absorbing.” At the sanme tinme there was a |ot nore noney
avai l able for designated grants for other comunities throughout
the state. Ms. Clarke said that that nobney does not exist
anynore in her departnent, and she offered her understanding
that it doesn't exist in any other departnent either. The
statute was witten in 1992 so that Anchorage and Fairbanks
woul d qualify. Now, because of its population increase, the

Mat anuska Susitna Borough qualifies for the grants, which has
changed the dynami cs of the funding for the program

M5. CLARKE, in response to a question from Vice Chair Seaton,
said she thinks there were sone other designated grants to other
|l ocal communities that are no |longer designated in the budget.
She stated that there was nore opportunity for other | ocal
muni ci palities to get social services funding.

CHAIR WLSON interpreted Ms. Clarke to have said that "everybody
was getting sonme kind of extra help - as funds - in all the
areas, but slowy, as the noney tightened up, they discontinued
the help in the snmaller areas, but Anchorage and Fairbanks
continued with theirs."

M5. CLARKE responded that that's correct. She offered her
understanding that, at one point, the social services block
grants were up to $4 nmillion and have been "ratcheted back to
the level they are now " She added, "Certainly the block grants

t hensel ves have been reduced, as well."
3:33:30 PM

HEATHER WHEELER, Deputy Director, Minicipality of Anchorage,
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), had her
testinmony read by Mlly CQullom Gant Admnistrator, DHHS, as
foll ows:

The Anchorage Departnment of Health and Human Services
supports HB 231 and the effort to expand human service
matching grant progranms to benefit nore Al aska
comunities. However, with that expansion, we would
hope the legislature would ensure sufficient funding

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- April 12, 2005



to hold current recipients harm ess. Passing this
legislation with sufficient funding will allow nore
communities to provide the essential safety net
services to prevent or alleviate serious physical or
mental hardship in this state, while not dimnishing
services in current recipient comunities. Thr ough
grants to local nonprofit agencies, the human services
mat chi ng grant supports the basic services that are
critical to our state's nost vulnerable citizens:
children, abuse victinms, those in tenporary crisis or
honel essness, and senior citizens.

Human service grant funding was originally nade
available to larger Al aska communities in the 1980s in
an effort to offset the disproportionate demand com ng
from people all over the state. The nunicipality
continues to serve the state as a hub comunity,
drawing and attracting people for services around the
state to Anchorage. Because Anchorage serves so nany
people fromoutside its borders, it is in this state's
best overall interest for the legislature not to
decrease funding for Anchorage in order to nake room
for nmore communities.

Currently, 65 percent of Anchorage's human service
mat ching grant funding goes for food and shelter

progr ans. These services are associated with people
on the nove, people in crisis, and people in
transition to and from rural conmunities. The
muni ci pality of Anchorage believes in being a

responsible citizen of the State of Al aska and, as
such, has never closed its doors to people from
outside of Anchorage who seek services. Because of
this, if nore communities becone eligible for human
service dollars, we ask that sufficient funding be
provided to sustain current services.

VICE CHAI R SEATON said the conmttee would probably be "I ooking

at that support"; however, that would happen a year, or so, in
the future, "because we're not talking about our current
budget . "

3:37:12 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated her intentions for the bill were not to nake
things worse for any other area in the state. She asked Ms.
Clarke if she would submt an increased budget to the governor

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 12, 2005



if, for exanple, she were to get two new applications by Cctober
1.

M5. CLARKE responded, "W would certainly prepare the request to
t he governor so that he would be aware of what the inplications
would be if that was not funded." She added that that
i nformati on woul d be made available to the legislature, as well.

VICE CHAIR SEATON conveyed to M. Wheeler through M. Cullom
that if all the grants are going through the main conmunities
and are not provided to the outlying communities, that tends to
bring the people who need services to the hub comunities. He
said he thinks the purpose of the bill is "to allow sone
distribution so that we can keep people in the conmunities where
t hey reside."

VI CE CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 231(CRA) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 231(CRA) was
reported from the House Health, Education and Social Services
St andi ng Comm ttee.

#

[ Vice Chair Seaton handed the gavel back to Chair WI son.]

HB 161- REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI REES

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 161, "An Act relating to reenploynent of and benefits
for retired teachers and public enployees and to teachers or
enpl oyees who participated in retirenent incentive prograns and
are subsequently reenployed as a conm ssioner; repealing secs.
5, 7, and 9, ch. 58, SLA 2001; providing for an effective date
by anmending the delayed effective date for secs. 3, 5 9, and
12, ch. 57, SLA 2001, and repealing sec. 13, ch. 58, SLA 2001,
which is the delayed effective date for secs. 5, 7, and 9, ch.
58, SLA 2001; and providing for an effective date."

3:40: 41 PM

JIM VANHORN, Staff to Representative Jim Elkins, introduced new
information relevant to HB 161 on behalf of Representative
El ki ns, sponsor. He reviewed that the legislation would allow
t he rehiring of certain public enployees' retirenent system
(PERS) and teachers' retirement system (TRS) nenbers who retired

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 12, 2005



with a nornmal retirenent. These rehired enployees can continue
to receive nornmal retirenent and benefits if they waive further
participation in the retirenment systens. During their period of
reenpl oynent, he said, no contributions to PERS and TRS are
required from the enployee or the enployer. The proposed
| egi sl ation woul d sunset July 1, 2009.

MR. VANHORN directed attention to an Al aska Legislative Report
entitled, "Results of the Retiree Return Program"™ produced by
the Division of Retirenent and Benefits and dated February 2005.
The report shows that, as of Novenmber 30, 2004, there were a
total of 211 retirees rehired under PERS and 124 retirees
rehired under TRS, for a total of 335 enployees, statew de. He
said that equates to one-tenth of 1 percent of all PERS and TRS
participants. He turned to a paragraph on page 4 of the report,
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

On Septenber 14, 2004 the Division of Retirenment and
Benefits recei ved an  Attorney Gener al Opi ni on
regarding the enploynent status of returned retirees
as of the sunset date of the legislation. The opinion
states that once the reenploynent anendnments to the
PERS and TRS statutes sunset on July 1, 2005,
reenployed retirees can no |onger receive retirenent
benefits while enployed by a PERS or TRS enpl oyer. |If
they continue enploynent with a PERS or TRS enpl oyer,
t hey must begin nmaking contributions to the retirenent
systens and have their retirement benefits stopped.

MR. VANHORN said the attorney general opinion canme as a conplete
surprise to nany. He stated, "The general opinion was that
after the initial period, the legislature would review the
program to see whether or not it was successful, and decide if
it should be continued. Life decisions were nade based on this
opi nion; now they slam shut in their faces.” M. Vanhorn noted
that the original legislation was a conponent of a workforce
devel opnent initiative of the state, and a nunber of enployers
undertook to address workforce shortages that were already being
experi enced.

MR. VANHORN directed attention to an article entitled, "State
Wor ker Shortage Loons," from a February 2005 issue of state news
[included in the commttee packet]. The article shows that many
states are currently facing the effects of an approaching
retirement inplosion that foll ows Baby Booners into their gol den
years. M . Vanhorn paraphrased sonme highlights of the article,
including: A 2002 study showed that 30 percent of nany states'

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 12, 2005



wor kf orces would be retirenment eligible by 2006; and conpoundi ng
an approaching shortage of workers, a [Nelson A Rockefeller
Institute of Governnment] study confirns that nationally, 50
percent of governnent jobs are in occupations requiring
speci alized training, education, or job skills, conpared to just
29 percent in the private sector. M. Vanhorn stated that it's
obvi ous the workforce shortage will not go away, but will only
intensify with time.

MR. VANHORN said that during a hearing on the bill, the House
Special Commttee on Education adopted a commttee substitute
for HB 161 that clearly states that the | egislature understands
that the rehire of retirees is a valuable tool for school
districts and public enployers to nmnage workforce shortages.
The committee substitute also finds that human resource managers
must plan to neet their future workforce needs, wthout reliance
on retired workers.

MR. VANHORN directed attention to the pie charts on pages 13 and
24 of the previously noted report. He said the charts show that
the majority of retirees that have been rehired were retired
over 24 nonths before com ng back to work, and the percentage of
rehires has slowy decreased since 2002. M. nentioned the zero

fiscal note in the commttee packet. He concluded, "The current
| egislation has provided human resource managers an excellent
tool to retain workers for hard-to-fill positions, and we urge

passage of this extension."

3:46:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE stated, "I am enbarrassed that | was in
the legislature at the tine that this bill passed. C. Thi s
bill was intended for very narrow circunstances: [For] snmal
communities in Al aska where there was a teacher shortage, where
kids were being left behind ... because there weren't adequate
teachers there.” Representative MQiire said there were also
statenents nade about the need for public health workers in sone
communities where there was a shortage. She said, "I signed off

on those very narrow circunstances, wth the agreenent and
understanding that this program would sunset and that we would
take a look at how it had been used ...." She said the tinme has
cone to review the program Representative MQ@ire reported
that there is a staggering anmount of information regarding the
abuse of t he program by t he current and precedi ng
adm ni strations. She offered an exanple of the abuse. She
stated, "I don't even think we wll begin to see the full

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 12, 2005



effects of what's happened over the last five years for decades
to cone."

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE said she cannot, in good conscience,
support the extension and she thinks the program should sunset.
She said she has heard concern that the state may be sued for
ending the program Conversely, she stated that she has
personal ly studied the waiver that the rehired enployees signed
and "there is no possible way that a state enployee could have
reasonably relied upon anything other than the waiver that they
signed, which clearly stated that this sunset would occur in
July.™ She said sone people would argue that the personnel
board has nmade "other statenments,” but she said nany tines
statenents are made that end up not being true. She offered an
exanpl e.

3:51: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there has been a m sunderstanding
that those on the program would have to quit their jobs when the
program sunsets. He stated for the record that those people can
continue their enploynent; they would just be put back into the
retirement system

MR.  VANHORN confirned that is true. He noted that TRS has
stringent "sideboards,” while PERS does not. He agreed that
there probably have been abuses to the program however, he
pointed out that the [United Fishernmen of Al aska] are strongly
behind the bill, because, without it, 30 or nore fish biol ogist
will be |ost. He offered further details. M. Vanhorn noted
that [HB 161] is a conpanion bill to a Senate bill.

3:54: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said it has been reported that PERS and
TRS are in trouble. She stated, "It seens sort of inconsistent
to at one time be tal king about how to fix that program ... at
the sane tinme that we're talking about ... continuing wth
sonething that would only nmeke it harder for the program to
exi st, because it's the continual paying in to that programthat
gives it the strength that allows it to continue, | would
assune. "

MR. VANHORN rem nded Representative Cissna that the bill carries
with it a zero fiscal note. He added, "The total cost ... is
$106. 53. " In response to a followup coment from
Representative G ssna, M. Vanhorn indicated that the fiscal

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 12, 2005



note reflects the inpact on the retirenment systens. He offered
further details.

3:55:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to a request from Chair
W1l son, offered sone background information on PERS and TRS as
it relates to the proposed bill. He said if [the State of
Al aska] was "collecting under the nornmal cost rate all of the
nmoney that would be necessary for a person's retirenent,” the
anount of enployees makes no difference. However, he expl ai ned,
there is a $15 billion past service cost liability. He
continued as foll ows:

So, what has happened in the past use of this bill is
that the enployers are not paying in on ... the past
service cost. ... The contribution rate is escal ating
at 5 percent a year, so, in just a few years, we're
going to be paying, |ike, 44 percent for the teachers
for the past service cost. ... | haven't | ooked at
the new CS on this bill as to whether this bill is now
going to nake the enployers use their entire wage
base, including these "waivered" enployees. o If

t hey make that contribution for the waivered enpl oyees
- in other words if they would be paying into the
system - then it wouldn't have the effect. If it is
as it has been currently, there is a detrinental
effect, because they're not paying in on the past
service cost.

MR. VANHORN referred to | anguage in CSHB 161(EDU), which was on
page 2, lines 12-14, and read as foll ows:

(c) It is the intent of the |egislature that
enpl oyers that benefit from the provisions of the
retiree reenployment provisions pay any increase in
unfunded liability that results to the retirenent
systens.

MR. VANHORN directed attention to page 11 of the previously
menti oned report, which shows a less than 1 percent inpact on
the [retirenment] system He offered further details.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt [the committee substitute
(CS) for 161(EDU), Version 24-1LS0645\G Craver, 4/5/05], as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version G was before the
conmittee.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 15- April 12, 2005



3:59: 58 PM

M KE TIBBLES, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Adm nistration, regarding the cost to the system
said one concern that has arisen is about bringing an individual
back that would receive a benefit wthout paying into the
system He augnmented Representative Seaton's previ ous
expl anation as foll ows:

Wen we hire an individual, we are paying a blended
rate: a normal cost rate and a past service rate.
The normal cost rate is the anobunt of the retirenent
benefit that that individual received after putting in
a nunber of years of service - either 30 years, or 25
years, or reaching retirenent eligibility by age. But
the benefit that they receive is based on the anount
that they and the enployer have been paying over their
lifetime for their career. So, for exanple, if they
wor ked 30 years, ... their pension benefit is based on
the anobunt that's paid, so there's no additional cost
to the system for that individual com ng back, because
t hat i ndi vidual's not accr ui ng any addi ti onal
benefits.

Since we have this unfunded liability, the cost
isn't associated with an individual; however, it's
associated with the system - it's $5 billion-worth.
When we take out an individual from the system ...
their salary-base is used to allocate out a cost for
past service rate. Then there becones a higher rate
anong the ot her nenbers.

MR. TIBBLES, regarding the inpact of the program said an
actuary calculated a separate threshold for PERS and TRS and
reported that "at 100 participants of a 242 waiver, there is a
$106,000 inmpact to the system"™ In PERS, there are 211
enpl oyees, so "the inpact doesn't trigger until 500 enployees."
He explained, "So, we have a long way to go on the PERS system
before they can actually put a dollar anmobunt to the inpact." He
continued as foll ows:

So, what the ... committee substitute that you have in
front of you does, is it requires all enployers - when
they bring an individual back - to pay that past
service rate at the point that they can put the dollar
amount to it - when it no |onger becomes negligible.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 12, 2005



: The net effect is: When an enployer brings
sonebody back on a 242 waiver, they're going to save
the nornmal cost rate; it's going to be a savings to
their system The State of Alaska saved a mllion
dol | ars.

MR. TIBBLES said although it's certainly not the reason for the
program the State of Al aska has saved a mllion dollars because

of it. He concluded, "Going forward under ... the commttee
substitute you have in front of you, we would be required to
pay: TRS would be an increase of .01 percent, and at 500

partici pants on PERS woul d be .02 percent."”

MR. TIBBLES, in response to a question from Chair WIson, noted
that the |anguage regarding a requirenent for a contribution by
enpl oyers for the past service cost is found "in Section 3 for
TRS and Section 4 for PERS." He explained that the way the
system is currently set wup, the director of the D vision of
Retirement & Benefits nonitors the nunmber of participants and,
at the point that he/she has been told by the actuary that there
is an inpact, then "costs will go out to all the enployers.” He
said he would support a change to automatically charge the past
service rate equal to every other enployee; thereby, even when
the cost is negligible, some anmobunt could still be collected
into the system

4:07:16 PM

CHAIR WLSON said she thinks the state has a responsibility to
be "covering what we need to cover."

4:07:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER directed attention to |anguage on page 2
[of Version G beginning on line 4], which read as foll ows:

In extending the term nation date of the reenploynent
provisions, it is the intent of the legislature to
allow school districts and public enployers to
continue to use this managenent tool, while devel oping
pl ans that address the know edge, skills, and
abilities that need to be transferred or devel oped to
assure the wrk can be acconplished when the
reenpl oynent provisions term nate.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if that |anguage was in the
original "waiver |egislation."

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 12, 2005



MR. Tl BBLES answered that he doesn't know.
4: 09: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER cl arified that she wanted to know if the
original plan was a tenporary one, wth the intent that the
enpl oyers have a contingency plan for "the end of the waiver
program"”

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE stated her understanding of the origina
| egi sl ation was designed as a tenporary crisis managenment tool
which is why there was a sunset cl ause.

4:11: 03 PM

MR. TIBBLES said the original sunset clause was added to the
original House Bill 242 in the House Finance Conmittee after
di scussion regarding the inpact to entry-Ilevel positions and how
the people in those positions would be able to nove up in career

progr essi on. He said that amendnent was the basis of the
decision of the Departnent of Law |last year that said that the
individuals currently enrolled in a 242 waiver will, as of July

1, [2005], stop receiving the pension benefits.

4:12: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE opined that wthout the sunset clause
the bill would not have passed. She said there was concern at
the time [House Bill 242] was on the floor regarding whether

there may be other options, such as recruitnment and retraining,
rat her than "giving people paychecks after they retire."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the purpose of the previously
menti oned | anguage in the bill was to analyze what the effect of
the program was on upward nobility of people within the system
and he noted that |letters had been received indicating that [the
wai ver progranm has been a severe detrinment to people attenpting
to have upward nobility. He asked, "Were is that addressed in
the [previously nmentioned] report?

4:14:14 PM
MR. TIBBLES responded that there was |anguage in House Bill 242
that required a report to the legislature; however, it only

applied to the TRS system The report provided to the conmttee
conplies with the requirenment that was submtted in the original

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 12, 2005



| egi sl ation. He stated that the adm nistration has additional
concerns regarding how the program has been inplenented
differently in each departnent. He stated, "I would like to
wal k through the administrative order that the governor signed
on March 8, that inplenents the sideboards and tal ks about what
we're going to require the departnents to do ... and the
wor kforce planning that needs to take place before they can
bring an individual back on 242."

4:14:54 PM

LEO JOHN KERIN, at the request of the chair and in the interest
of time, offered an abbreviated version of his witten
testinmony, which he said he would send to the commttee. He
said he taught in a rural school district and strongly supports
any neasures taken to support excellence in education in rural

Al aska, but is not convinced that "the rehire bill is the way to
do that." He said he would send alternative suggestions to the
conmttee by facsimle. M. Kerin stated his strong opposition
to the extension of the rehire bill for PERS enpl oyees for the
foll owi ng reason: "While there ... may be a shortage of
qualified teachers willing to work in rural Al aska, there is no
shortage of qualified applicants willing to work in town wth
the state governnment bureaucracy, court system university
system or nunicipal government."” He continued as foll ows:

If there was a problem finding qualified applicants

as was recently the case for [the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&F)] technica

engi neers, the Departnment of Admnistration would
adjust their ... internal alignnment of salaries for
the job class to attract nore applicants. |If there is
a real short-term shortage of experienced personnel
for a specific job, ... there is and always has been a
contracting procedure to gain the needed experti se.

MR. KERIN said there has been significant abuse by the program
He indicated that the admnistration acknow edged that abuse
when it brought forth a <corrective admnistrative order

however, he said that order is like closing a barn door after

the horses are out. He mentioned a "flood of recently retired
and rehired enployees, many of whom never bothered their desks
during the 30-day waiting period.” He asked, "If there is such

a brain-drain for retiring baby boonmers, why was the program
only offered to a select few higher-level adm nistrators instead
of all retirenent-age enpl oyees?”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 12, 2005



MR. KERIN said early retirement |egislation has not been around
for very |ong. He said now provisions have been nmade to |et
conmmi ssioners cone back fromearly retirenent, wthout having to
make restitution to PERS as is required in the retirenment
incentive program bills. He said there has been nuch discussion
regarding the potential for lawsuits from people who believe
that the information given to them from the Division of
Retirement & Benefits nmeant that they would be "grandfathered in
for life." He said, "I would worry nore about all the people
who ... retired early asserting that they should be given the
same opportunity as all the other double-dippers in the sane
job."

MR. KERIN stated his belief that no realistic evaluation has
been made regarding "the cost of PERS of inducing Tier |
enpl oyees to retire on tinme, thereby affecting the retirenent
programis actuarials.” He offered further details. He
suggested that nore testinony against [HB 161] is not heard from
"the rank and file enployees,” because it's only their bosses
who are being given "this platinum parachute.” He added,
"There's a real fear of retaliation.”

MR. KERIN said that though the bill is well intentioned, the
sunset needs to take place. He asked that at the very |east,
the adm nistration nmake the positions of those in PERS who have
al ready been rehired be subject to reexam nation "pursuant to
the safeguards of the recent admnistrative order." He said
"If it can be shown that a true shortage exists for the job in
guestion, the person should be allowed to retain their job while

restitution is made to ... PERS ..., as would take place if the
person had taken an early retirenent. Any other course of
action results in all nenbers of PERS shoul dering the cost of
these people's 60 percent bonus.™ M. Kerin opined that the

| egi slature also needs to be forthright about the transfer of
general fund operating costs that have already been transferred
to PERS/TRS as a result of existing rehire |egislation.

4:21:56 PM

ROBERT MHATTIE, testifying on behalf of hinmself, told the
commttee that he is a retired PERS nenber, formerly enployed by
DOT&PF. He thanked Representative MQuire for her previous
comments, which he said mrror his own. He said House Bill 242
originally addressed hard-to-hire teaching positions, especially
in the Bush. He posited that the rehiring of retired teachers
has generally been nore justified and carefully handl ed conpared

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 12, 2005



to the nostly supervisory and "inportant person"” rehires done in
PERS. He offered an exanple of the careful handling in TRS.

MR. MHATTIE, regarding PERS, said he thinks it's self-interest
that makes those who are going to be or have been rehired and
those who represent agencies that do the rehiring support the
proposed | egislation. He said he personally knows |ower-I|eve
staff nenbers in several different agencies who are against
these hiring practices but are afraid to give negative testinony
for fear of reprisals from managenent or senior workers who have

been rehired or intend to return. M. MHattie said obviously
it is the Ilower-|evel staffers’ paychecks that will be
di m ni shed when the |egislature jacks up the PERS contri buti ons,
wi thout collecting it from those who have been rehired. He

clarified, "[Those fornerly retired enployees who are rehired]
collect tw fat paychecks while paying nothing into PERS, and

the coworkers ... know that's going on." He concl uded:
It has been argued that individuals are so
know edgeabl e and experienced, that they or others on
the staff cannot be replaced. Wiile | am sure that
long-term enployees all consider thenselves to be
irreplaceable - | know | did while I was working -
that argunment just doesn't wash. Adm ni strators have
always had the responsibility of making sure that
staff positions can be covered in case of illness,
vacat i ons, deat h, or sonmebody j ust qui tting.
Considering that vacations for |ong-term enpl oyees can
extend nmost of a nmonth, | assume that various
organi zations don't fall apart during that tine.

Every enployee is replaceable by necessity, except in
cases where poor managemnent or favoritism or
sonmething |ike that, exists.

4:26:33 PM

LARRY WGET, Director, Governnent Relations, Anchorage School
District, testified in support of the legislative intent of HB
161 to rehire retired enployees when there is an actual shortage
of applicants for the vacant position, and urged the |egislature
to extend the sunset date for the legislation with the caveat
that simlar restrictions currently placed on the rehire of TRS
enpl oyees - AS 14.21.35 - be adopted for PERS enployees, as
wel | . He stated concern that the pre-selection and hiring of
retirees to fill the job they have just vacated, w thout regard
as to whether or not there is a qualified applicant pool from
which to draw, elimnates the career |adder in state enploynent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 12, 2005



for other enployees who are qualified and may apply and, unlike
the rehire, would be contributing to the state retirenent
system

4:28: 09 PM

BRUCE JOHNSON, Al aska Association of School Boards (AASB), said
that association's nenbership resolved itself behind the
extension of the rehire provision at its annual conference in
Novenber . He said, "W believe this is a valuable tool for
school districts to have. | think it's been used sparingly,
when necessary, and we still - even with this provision - have
positions that are unfilled at the beginning of every school
year, well into the senester, in sone cases." He offered an
exanpl e. He said a |lot of noney has been invested in teachers
who have reached retirenent eligibility age, but may still have
a couple years left to teach, perhaps after going away for a
whi | e. They can cone back, work for a couple of years, and
"fill sonme vital needs.” He said nost districts would just as
soon bring in a young teacher to enploynent and guarantee that
he/she will be there for a long tine, but the reality is that
it's just not possible in some of the areas with an acute
shortage of teachers.

4:30: 38 PM

CHRI S S. CHRI STENSEN, Deput y Adm ni strative Di rector,
Adm nistrative Staff, Ofice of the Admnistrative D rector,
Al aska Court System stated that the retiree return program has
been very helpful to the court system and he said that system

is hopeful that the program wi ||l be extended by the |egislature.
M. Chri stianson reported t hat t he court system has
approximately 650 nonjudicial enployees at 32 |ocations around
the state. Currently, there are only about 10 people

participating in the program Though that doesn't sound Iike
many, he said, those positions are critical to the operation of
the court system He stated that to a much greater extent than
the executive branch, the court system has a nunber of unique,
one- person job classes. One exanple, he said, is the state |aw
l'ibrarian. He said it is crucial that these job positions
remain filled by know edgeabl e persons. He said it is difficult
to recruit internally for such positions, because nore than half
of the court systemis enployees are clerical enployees who
cannot be pronoted to these specific jobs.

MR. CHRI STIANSON stated that for certain jobs in the court
system there have been no qualified applicants and there have

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 12, 2005



been times when supervisors [who have retired] have had to be
rehired. He explained that the turnover rate in the |ower-I|eve
positions is about 50 percent within the first five years of
enpl oynent . In some rural |ocations, the turnover is tw ce as
bad. He said this is primarily because of |ow pay.

MR. CHRI STI ANSON said that the court system has, for nore than
the |ast decade, been running a mandatory 30-day hiring freeze
for all positions; the only person allowed to waive the freeze

is the admnistrative director. He said this action is
financially responsible; however, because of the practice, when
jobs turn over there are vacancies that last for 30 days. He
said the freeze is a doubl e-edged sword: it requires that the

supervi sors be nore experienced in order to keep the case | oad
noving during times when there are job vacancies, but the
turnover neans that fewer people get the years of experience
they need to becone supervisors. He conti nued: "The retiree
return program has enabled the court system to continue to
function in an efficient manner because of our ability to hire
back experienced and know edgeabl e enployees in the one-person
job classes and in the rare supervisory positions where we
sinmply cannot fill the job. Wthout it, we would be struggling
to fill certain key positions.”

MR. CHRI STI ANSON noted that the court system participated in the

retirement incentive program (RIP) several years ago. He
enphasi zed how damaging the RIP was; the court system lost the
core of its | ong-term experienced supervisors. M.

Christianson stated, "To sone extent, this program has hel ped us
make up for that a little bit. And that's one of the reasons we
are appreciative of this."

CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.

4:35:12 PM

CHAIR WLSON said there are problens to be worked out, but there
also is "an obvious need." She nentioned future work on the
bill.

4:36: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said he has heard concerns expressed
from Al aska State Troopers and is glad the bill will be held so
that they will have a chance to offer their coments.

CHAI R W LSON announced that [HB 161 was heard and hel d].

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- April 12, 2005



HB 204- OPTOVETRI STS' USE OF PHARVACEUTI CALS

CHAI R WLSON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 204, "An Act relating to the prescription and use of
phar maceut i cal agent s, including controlled substances, by
optonetrists.”

4:38:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 204, said that he represents 28 comunities, which
t oget her have one optonetrist and no opht hal nol ogi sts. He said
the bill is critical for the needs of those comunities. He
said it is inportant to note that the unenploynent rate in those
communities ranges from 35 to 85 percent. The chance of many of
the citizens in these communities having insurance is "nil."

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS stated that HB 204 would change statutes
to allow optonetrists to admnister oral pharmaceuticals to
provide better and nore conplete eye care to Al askans.
Currently, he noted, optonetrists are limted in the treatnent
of eye disease that is seen on a routine basis and woul d benefit
from oral nedication, including acute allergic reactions, ocular
herpes, ocular herpes zoster, and chronic |[|id diseases.
Currently 100 optonetrists in 17 locations serve the state,
spanning from Barrow to Juneau. There are 26 eye care
speci alists I n 6 | ocati ons t hat can prescri be ora
pharmaceuticals in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS recounted a tine when he was visiting a

rural community and was suffering from diverticulitis. He was
surprised that the physician's assistant could prescribe
medi cation for him while an optonetrist could not. The
proposed |egislation would enable the optonetrists to practice
at the level at which they are trained. Representati ve Thomas
rem nded the commttee that the legislature had recently voted
in favor of a bill that would allow doctors trained in Asia to

cone to the Alaska and practice. He said HB 204 is sinply
asking that optonetrists be allowed to use their background and
education to the full extent. He al so noted that another bil
was recently supported that would allow a student to carry
hi s/her own syringe and self treat in the case of anaphyl axis,
while an optonetrist is not allowed to treat for energency
anaphyl axi s.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 12, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said, wthout question, vision is an
i nportant aspect of a person's |life and should be treated by a
trained eye care professional. Currently, optonetrists nust
refer outpatients to a general physician, physician's assistant,
or a nurse practitioner for oral treatnment of ocular disease

He said the proposed |egislation wuld renove an extra step by
having the ocular treatnment done by an eye care professional,
thereby saving the patient from undue conplications and
financial costs. He said, for exanple, that a person comng to
Juneau from Kake for eye care would spend $200 roundtrip by
pl ane, or would have to take a circuitous route by ferry, which
is only offered twice a nonth

REPRESENTATI VE THOMVAS sai d opht hal nol ogi sts are specialists, and
he indicated that he is not trying to take anything away from
t hem He said he just wants people from the Bush to get good
and tinely eye care.

4:47:10 PM

CHAIR W LSON stated her intention to hold the bill because it is
"different than the one |ast year."

4:47:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to Representative Thomas' asking
that optonetrists be allowed to use their training. She stated
her understanding that ophthal nologists are doctors, whereas
optonetrists are not, and she asked if that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS of fered hi s under st andi ng t hat
optonetrists have been trained in the area of giving oral
nmedi cine for eye care. He added that if that were not the case,
44 states would not have already allowed optonetrists to
[ prescribe oral eye nedication]. He suggested that the experts
could enlighten the commttee further.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that a person in the Bush could
get a prescription froma nurse practitioner.

REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS said the concern is that a person not
trained specifically in the <care of eyes <could nmake a
m sdi agnosi s.

4:50:40 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- April 12, 2005



CARL ROSEN, M D., President, Al aska Eye Physicians and Surgeons,
testified in opposition to HB 204. He told the conmttee that
he is an ophthal nol ogi st who practices in Anchorage. He stated
t hat opht hal nol ogi sts attend college for four years, go through
four years of nedical school into which only 1 in 200 get
accepted, serve a one-year internship in nedicine or surgery,
and conplete a three-year intensive residency, at which point
t he opht hal nol ogi st | earns to di agnose, treat, and operate. The
residency is typically done in a large wuniversity or city
hospital where the ophthal nologist conditions himherself to
deal wth very sick people. The system filters out those who
can't handle the surgical anxiety that cones with the job. Dr .
Rosen said he conpleted a fellowship in addition to the three
years of residency to further train hinmself in orbital surgery
and neur o- opt honol ogy.

DR. ROSEN said the issue of the rarity of finding an
ophthalmologist in a rural conmunity is "yes and no." He
expl ained that the Native hospital travels frequently to various
Native communities and has its own patient population. He noted
that the U S. Air Force also does that. H s own practice has
doctors who travel to Kodi ak, Cordova, and Sitka. He added that
t here are [ophthal nol ogi sts] in both Juneau and Fai r banks.

DR. ROCSEN confirmed that nurse practitioners have the ability to
prescri be nedications, but they are specifically trained to "be
the first line." They treat with nedication and also are
know edgeabl e regarding the pharmacol ogy of nedicines. He said
anyone trained as an optonetrist beyond five years ago did not
have the intensive training to understand the pharmacokinetics
and interaction of nedicines. Optonetrists also do not have
hospi tal -based privileges or interact with the nmedical community
on a regular basis. Dr. Rosen said he frequently consults other
medi cal specialists when nultiple drugs are invol ved.

DR. ROSEN stated that HB 204 does not differentiate treating an
infant versus a ninety-nine-year-old. He said there is a danger
in "just allowing this to go forward.” He said the subject of
the bill has been seen in the past and has consistently been
t hwar t ed. He said, "If you read the bill, it's under the
jurisdiction of the optonmetric conmmunity, which is outside the
purview of the nedical board and the nedical community." He
said he thinks that's a dangerous problem

DR. ROSEN sai d ophthal nol ogists in Al aska do take phone calls as

a courtesy to the people of the state. He said he is avail able
24 hours a day, 7 days a week. He said:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- April 12, 2005



Sone states do have this bill, but if you |ook at the
overall nunber of optonetrists who use it, it's very
smal | . ... Let's say there's 100 optonetrists in New
Mexico who have this privilege; roughly 10-15 wll
actually use nedications on a consistent basis to be
considered famliar wth nedications. So, the vast
majority don't have the nunbers. And in nedical
school and in residency training, you' re only allowed
to graduate if you can prove that you have the
capability to do this procedure or wunderstand this
di sease. That's how nedi cal school training [works].
And optonetric training will not have that, because
now they're outside of school and they're relying on
the optonetric board to give them a go or a no-go on
this. So, | think that's also a probl em

4:57:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON i ndicated that he would like to know if
there would be trouble if the bill is not passed.

DR. ROSEN answer ed no. He st at ed:

As long as you're able to communicate the clinical
synptonms and describe the ophthalmc condition to an
opht hal nol ogi st, or even [to] the enmergency room which
can transfer [that information] to the ophthal nol ogi st
..., we're able to intervene and appropriately manage
and assess the patient and then prescribe any
medi cation, if any is necessary. ... There is no
public outcry for this, and | have not heard or [do
not] know of a problem where an optonetrist has had a
dire condition and has not been able to contact an
opht hal nol ogi st when needed. | just don't know of
one.

5:00: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if "tel emedi cine” is invol ved.

DR. ROSEN said he not only supports telenedicine, but it's been
a hobby and avocation of his for the past seven years. He said
efforts are being made to get nore of the nmedical community to

accept [tel enedicine]. He listed sone of the cases that he has
treated by tel enedicine.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- April 12, 2005



5:01: 53 PM

DONALD J. CNOITI, MD., said that he is from the Anmerican
Acadeny of Ophthalnology and is "on the state affairs commttee"
in New Jersey. He said he nonitors simlar bills across the
country and considers the ramfications of them Dr. G nott

stated that the proposed legislation is by far the nost
expansi ve of any bill he has seen in a long tine, because of its
vague | anguage. For exanple, the bill nentions pharmaceutica

agents, but does not specify oral pharmaceutical agents, which
he said would lead a person to believe that injectable
nmedi cations could be used, which he said is very troubl esone.
He said another concern is in regard to the use of "off-I|abe

medi cation. " The treatnents for ophthalmc disorders are
becom ng very conpl ex. He offered an exanple of nedicine that
can be dangerous in the wong hands, and he said sone
conplications can lead to death. He stated, "Certainly we don't
believe that the optonetrists have the expertise or the
know edge to recognize the conplications of wuse of these
medi cations, nor the ability to treat them properly."”

DR. CINOITI said it's often nentioned that there are not enough
opht hal nol ogi sts around to take care of patients, but in
reality, there are, he said. He expl ained that when a patient
goes to an energency room there is wusually an arrangenent
bet ween that energency room and an ophthal nol ogi st on call who
can determne the proper treatnent. He said the bill has no
oversi ght by physicians of optonetrists; there would be no phone
call to an ophthalnologist to see if the nedication or the
di agnosis is correct. He reiterated that the bill is a "very,
very dangerous" one.

5: 05: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the language in the bill that Dr.
Cnotti would like tightened is that on page 1, lines 9-10,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(2) the pharmaceutical agent is prescribed
and used for the treatnent of ocular disease or
conditions, ocular adnexal disease or conditions, or
ener gency anaphyl axi s;

DR. CINOITlI, in response, said many treatnents for diseases are
progressing, and he offered exanples. He reiterated that the
| anguage does not specify oral versus injected nedicine, but
only lists "pharnmaceutical agent".

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- April 12, 2005



5:07:38 PM

DR. Cl NOTTI , in response to a followup question from
Representative Seaton, said adding "oral" before "pharmaceutical
agent" would help, but there would still be the need to consider
what is necessary for an optonetrist to treat patients in a
rural area. For exanple, if the concern is that optonetrists
should be able to wuse antibiotics, then the bill should
specifically list what antibiotics they may use. He stated that
an ophthal nologist, in practice, does not, in general, use
control |l ed substances. He said he has worked as a director of

ocular trauma in a major hospital for 22 years and has not
witten a subscription for a narcotic in at |east three years.
He added, "So, what is the point of giving the optonetrist the
right to subscribe narcotics?”

5:09: 08 PM
BOYD WALKER, O D., testified in support of HB 204. I n response

to remarks fromthe previous speakers, he said he believes it is
up to the individual practitioner to nake the decision as to

whet her something is within their scope of practice or not. He
said a famly practice doctor may well be capable of delivering
a baby, but an obstetrician may think otherw se. Dr. Wal ker

said he is not arguing that an ophthalnologist's |evel of
training is [not] higher than that of an optonetrist; however,
he stated that in routine practice, there are tinmes when
i ndi vidual optonetrists - especially those in rural areas of
Al aska - need to have the ability to prescribe oral nedications
and occasionally even inject nedicine. He continued:

| recall back in the 70s, when optonetrists were not
all owed to use any nedi cations, whatever - not for the
pur pose of diagnosing eye disease, nor for the purpose

of treating eye disease. And opht hal nol ogy said,
"Gosh, people die from eye drops that dilate your
eyes." Well, | believe today that after 15 years of

experience that even our ophthal nology colleagues
woul d agree that optonetry has served a great function
in terns of diagnosing eye disease that they would not
have been able to find had not pharnmaceuticals been
all owed to optonetry.

DR WALKER said Dr. Rosen alluded to the fact that "even in

states |ike New Mexico that have the drugs, not everyone uses
them"™ He stated his belief that that proves that optonetrists

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- April 12, 2005



are judicious in the use of the drugs; they only use them when
necessary and they probably do make a lot of referrals to
opht hal nol ogi sts who are readily available. In rural Al aska, he
said, there certainly are cases where individuals mght need
i mredi ate treatnment and be unable to get it.

DR. WALKER said the education of an optonetrist is simlar to
that of a famly practice physician and dentist, and in nost
cases above that of a nurse practitioner and physician's

assi st ant . In conclusion, Dr. Walker stated his belief that
optonetrists have the education and the credentials to use
"these nedications”" and will be careful in using them to the

best interest of their patients. He said he believes that rura
Al askans would really benefit from [the proposed |egislation],
in ternms of not having to wait for treatnent or having to take
the tinme to travel to a larger center where an ophthal nol ogi st
may be available. He urged the commttee to support HB 204.

5:13:35 PM

DR WALKER, in response to a question from Chair W]Ison,
outlined the training necessary to becone an optonetrist: f our
years of undergraduate work, pre-optonetry, or pre-nedicine,
followed by an additional four years of post graduate training
in optonetry school. Many optonetrist elect to subsequently
conplete either an internship or residency, although he said
that is not all that common.

5:14: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA noted that she has heard the subject of
the bill for seven years. She asked if there was sone way that
the optonetrists could augnment their education so that the
concerns of the nmedical comunity could be sol ved.

DR. WALKER responded that optonetric education already trains

individuals to use "these nedications.” He said it appears that
it is the ophthalnmology conmunity who is showing an
unwi | I i ngness to conpromise. He clarified that he does not even
categorize that group as being the nedical comunity.

Currently, statute requires that optonetrists partake in
continuing nedical education, which is regulated by the state
Those optonetrists that utilize pharmaceutical agents have to
have specific retraining on a biannual basis in order to renew
their |icenses.

5:19: 02 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- April 12, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that a naturopathic doctor
under goes eight years of training. She asked Dr. Walker if he
t hi nks they shoul d have prescriptive rights.

DR. WALKER responded that he knows nothing about the training of
a naturopathic doctor and therefore cannot speak to that. He
said he thinks every professional who [prescribes] nedication or
performs procedures should be wlling to display his/her
curriculum of training. He said, "Those who have an M D. behind
their nanme, once they've received their training and they have
their degree and their board exans behind them really have no
one to answer to other than the nedical board. ... Al other
: limted Ilicense practitioners nmust cone to ... t he
| egislature to develop regulation to delineate their scope of
practice.”

5:21: 01 PM

CRIFF STEINER, MD., offered his nedical training history and
told the conmttee that he is an ophthal nol ogi st who has speci al
training in glaucoma and corneal surgery. He said that although
he has respect for Dr. Walker and the profession of optonetry,
he must refute a nunber of Dr. Wilker's assertions. First,
regarding Dr. Walker's claim that optonetrists have the sane
anount of training as famly nedical physicians and dentists, he
said that during their entire training period, physicians,
dentists, and nurse practitioners admnister nedications to
patients under the supervision of other physicians. At no tine
during optonetrists' training are they prescribing nedications
under supervision, or at all. Dr. Steiner said in his practice
he has rarely had to prescribe oral antibiotics. He continued:

The only tinmes | have had to prescribe oral
antibiotics is when the patient had a very dire
infection, the kind that could kill them - the thing
that would have to be referred. |If an optonetrist saw
lid swelling and treated it with oral antibiotics and
it was instead a diabetic infection of the sinuses,
that patient would die in a matter of days. It cannot
be overstated that optonetrists have no practical
training in prescribing nedications, other than eye
dr ops. During their training, they do not prescribe
oral antibiotics or pain nedications to patients in
the hospital; they're not responsible for any patients
in the hospital during their entire training.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- April 12, 2005



DR. STEINER agreed with the prior testinony of [Dr. Cinotti]
that HB 204 is dangerous because of its vagueness. If the bil
were to pass, he warned, optonetrists would then have precedent
to apply to the federal drug enforcenent agency to be allowed to
prescribe drugs that are "way outside their purview" He said
he thinks the bill would also be a stepping-stone in allow ng
optonetrists to do surgical things they are also not trained to
do.

DR. STEINER said the only way that optonetrists are associated
with operations is by doing the post-operative care for an
itinerate physician who flies to Alaska from out of state,
performs surgery, and |eaves the patient in the care of the
optonetrist. He continued:

They're not trained to do this either. If we allow
them to do these prescriptions, they wll keep
prescribing nedications for patients they're not
trying to take care of in the first place, and they're
especially not allowed to prescribe the nedications to

those patients. And they'll be no supervision as this
itinerate physician flies imediately back down to
Seattl e. C The itinerate physician hinself has
said that he doesn't feel qualified to treat these
nmedi cal patients, so, ... as an MD., he does not take
referrals from his optonetric network. And the

optonetrists are too enbarrassed or reluctant to refer
to us, because of the arrangenent with the itinerate
physician, which ..., albeit not illegal, ... allows
for a $200-400 per eye paynment if they refer to the
itinerate physicians. They would get no noney if they
referred to wus. And so, ... the only MD. that
they're strongly associated with feels unqualified to
treat patients and refers them back to the
optonetrists, who then refer back and forth between
optonetry. W' ve seen patients admtted to hospitals
treated by optonetrists [with] nmedi cations that
they're not |icensed to prescribe. ... | don"t think
| can overstate this enough.

[ HB 204 was heard and hel d. ]
5:27:45 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 32- April 12, 2005



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adj ourned at approximately 5:30 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- April 12, 2005



